
The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and our environment, providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and resource recovery. 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

     BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

April 18, 2024 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

OPEN SESSION: 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

This portion of the meeting is reserved for people desiring to address the Board on matters not on the

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting.

2. APPOINTMENT TO FILL THE VACANCY ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO GOV.
CODE SEC.1780/BOARD POLICY B-90 AND ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE

Board to appoint a Director candidate to fill the vacancy on the Board of Directors.

CLOSED SESSION: 

3. CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.8

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR  –   Two items: 1) First Property: McPhail
Site (APNs 180-151-18, 180-161-10, and 180-161-09) McPhail: Approximately 9.76 acres of land
(APNs 180-151-18, 180-161-10, & 180-161-09), located at 1565 Vendola Drive, San Rafael, in
the County of Marin (unincorporated), that served as the location of the former McPhail Elementary
School, which consists of vacant land and secured structures ("McPhail Site").  Agency negotiator:
Curtis Paxton, General Manager. Negotiating parties: San Rafael City Elementary School District.
Under negotiation: Instruction to negotiator will concern both price and terms of payment.
2) Second Property: Old Gallinas Site  (APN 180-123-01) : Approximately 7.9 acres of developed land
(APN 180-123-01), located at 251 N. San Pedro Road, San Rafael, in the County of Marin 

(unincorporated), consisting of classroom buildings and athletic field ("Old Gallinas Site"). Agency 
negotiator: Curtis Paxton, General Manager. Negotiating parties: San Rafael City Elementary 
School District. Under negotiation: Instruction to negotiator will concern both price and terms of 
payment. 

Estimated 
Time 

4:10 PM 

4:00 PM 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


April 18, 2024 Page 2 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

OPEN SESSION: 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board.

A. Approve the Board Minutes for April 4, 2024

B. Approve the Warrant List for April 18, 2024

C. Approve Board Compensation for March 2023

D. Approve Murray attending webinar Using GIS for State and Local Government Asset Management
on April 16, 2024 

E. Approve Murray attending the NBWA Conference on April 19 in Sonoma 

F. Approve Univar Solutions USA Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite 

G. Approve Kemira Water Solutions Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Ferric Chloride 

H. Approve Thatcher Company of California Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Sodium Bisulfite 

I. Approve Order of Publication Ordinance 194 

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B through H. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through I. 

5. INFORMATION ITEMS:

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS:

1. General Manager’s Report – verbal

6. RESOLUTION 2024-2326  BOARD POLICY F-90-70 DISBURSEMENTS

Board to review Resolution 2024-2326 and Board Policy F-90-70 Disbursements.

7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:

1. CLARK
a. NBWA Board Committee, Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee,

Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee,  FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee,
CASA Workforce Committee, Other Reports

2. MURRAY
a. Marin LAFCo, Flood Zone 6, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee,

Development Ad Hoc Committee,  San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

3. ROBARDS
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,

McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  Development Ad Hoc Committee,
FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

4:50 PM 

5:10 PM 

5:25 PM 

4:40 pm 

2



April 18, 2024 Page 3 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

4. YEZMAN
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE,

Marin Special Districts,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

8. BOARD REQUESTS:
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal

9. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

10. ADJOURNMENT

FUTURE BOARD MEETINGS APRIL 17, MAY 2 AND MAY 16, 2024 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before April 15, 2024 4:00 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the 
Board Meeting of said Board to be held on April 18, 2024 at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas Valley 
Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: April 11, 2024 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study session. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 
Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting.

5:40  PM 

AGENDA APPROVED: Craig K. Murray, President Patrick Richardson  Legal Counsel 

5:50  PM 

5:45 PM 

3



4/18/2024 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



4/18/2024 

 APPOINTMENT TO FILL THE VACANCY ON THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting

 Oath of Office

□ Presentation

I, _____________ do solemnly swear or affirm that I will 
support and defend the Constitution of the United States and 
the Constitution of the State of California against all 
enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and 
allegiance to the Constitution of the United States and the 
Constitution for the State of California; that I take this 
obligation freely, without any mental reservation or purpose 
of evasion; and I will well and faithfully discharge the duties 
upon which I am about to enter. 

AGENDA ITEM 2 

5



 

 
 

 

4/18/2024 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

 Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

□ Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04182024\ASR for FY 24-25 Contract Award for Sodium Hypochlorite.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors   

From: Mel Liebmann, Plant Manager  mliebmann@lgvsd.org 415-526-1526 

Mtg. Date: April 18, 2024 

Re: Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite (12.5% 
Concentration) during the twelve-month period of July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025. 

Item Type:   Consent__ X ____ Discussion______ Information______ Other________  

Standard Contract:    Yes_X__   No_____(See attached)  Not Applicable_______ 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve Univar Solutions USA LLC Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite 
(12.5% Concentration) during the twelve-month period of July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025. 

BACKGROUND 
As a member agency of the Bay Area Chemical Consortium (BACC), District staff received all documents 
and correspondence relating to the solicitation of bids to furnish sodium hypochlorite for the twelve-month 
period of July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025 from the BACC administrating agency, Dublin San Ramon 
Services District (DSRSD). Sodium Hypochlorite is used for disinfection to remain in compliance with the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant NPDES and recycled water permit requirements.  
 
In 2015, BACC members voted to approve the ability for vendors to submit bids for sodium hypochlorite by 
geographic region. LGVSD is a member agency located in the Marin-Sonoma-Napa region. DSRSD 
received bids from two vendors, Univar USA Inc. and Olin Corporation. The BACC bid review document 
revealed that Univar USA Inc. was the lowest responsive bid for the Marin/Sonoma/Napa region. Olin 
Corporation bid was responsive but not the lowest price for the Marin-Sonoma-Napa region. 
 
BACC 2024 
Bid Tabulation 
 
 Bidder       Unit Price Per Gallon 

Univar USA Inc. $3.25 

Olin Corporation $3.29 

 
 
BACC 2023  
Bid Tabulation 
 
 Bidder       Unit Price Per Gallon 

Hasa, Inc. $2.88 

Olin Corporation $2.99 

Univar USA Inc. $3.25 

 

Item Number______4F________ 

GM Review   ____CP__________ 

 

32

mailto:mliebmann@lgvsd.org


 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04182024\ASR for FY 24-25 Contract Award for Sodium Hypochlorite.docx Page 2 of 2 

A copy of the Notice of Intent to Award Contract in Response to BACC Bid No. 13-2024 for Supply and 
Delivery of 12.5% Sodium Hypochlorite addressed to Univar USA Inc. was received from DSRSD on 
March 18, 2023. DSRSD advised BACC member agencies in the Marin/Sonoma/Napa region to contact 
Univar USA Inc. to arrange for purchasing sodium hypochlorite (12.5%) for the period of July 1, 2024 to 
June 30, 2025.   
 
The District benefits from being a BACC member agency by leveraging the buying power of multiple 
agencies to receive the best pricing for bulk chemicals. There is also an additional benefit of reduced staff 
time that is dedicated to bid process administration. This allows staff the ability to focus on the many 
current and future projects that the District is currently undertaking or planning for. 
 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
At the April 6, 2023 regular meeting, the Board approved a 12-month contract to Hasa Inc. to furnish liquid 
sodium hypochlorite (12.5% concentration) beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:  
NA 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The draft FY2024/2025 budgeted amount for sodium hypochlorite is $206,200. 
 
 
 
 

33



 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04182024\ASR for FY 24-25 Contract Award for Ferric Chloride.docx Page 1 of 3 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors   

From: Mel Liebmann, Plant Manager  mliebmann@lgvsd.org 415-526-1526 

Mtg. Date: April 18, 2024 

Re: Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Ferric Chloride during the twelve-month 
period of July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025. 

Item Type:   Consent__ X ____ Action______ Information______ Other________  

Standard Contract:    Yes_X__   No_____(See attached)  Not Applicable_______ 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve Kemira Water Solutions, Inc. Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Ferric Chloride during the 
twelve-month period of July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025 

BACKGROUND 
As a member agency of the Bay Area Chemical Consortium (BACC), District staff received all documents 
and correspondence relating to the solicitation of bids to furnish Ferric Chloride for the twelve-month period 
of July 1, 2024, to June 30, 2025, from the BACC administrating agency, Dublin San Ramon Services 
District (DSRSD). Ferric Chloride has two uses at the treatment plant: chemically enhanced primary 
treatment (CEPT) and for the reduction of sulfides in the anaerobic digestion process.  
 
CEPT is a treatment strategy used during high flows that enhances solids capture in the primary clarifiers. 
This improves the performance of all downstream processes and in turn increases the plant’s ability to 
remain in compliance with the Wastewater Treatment Plant NPDES permit requirements. A small amount 
of ferric chloride is also injected into the solids pumped to the anaerobic digesters all year long. The 
resulting chemical reaction with sulfide ion in the sludge reduces the formation of hydrogen sulfide gas 
which would have to be removed by the filtration system in the biogas conditioning skid. Without ferric 
chloride addition, the system’s hydrogen sulfide filtration media would need to be changed with greater 
frequency. Maintaining low sulfide levels in flared digester gas is also a Bay Area Air Quality Management 
District (BAAQMD) permit requirement. 
 
In 2015, BACC members voted to approve the ability for vendors to submit bids for ferric chloride by 
geographic region. LGVSD is a member agency located in the Marin-Sonoma-Napa region. Review of the 
DSRSD documents revealed that Kemira Water Solutions, Inc. was the lowest responsive bidder for the 
Marin-Sonoma-Napa region. Pencco, Inc.’s bid was found to be responsive but not the lowest priced for 
the Marin-Sonoma-Napa region. 
 
BACC 2024 
Bid Tabulation 
 
Bidder        Unit Price Per Dry Ton 

Kemira Water Solutions, Inc. $1573.00 

Pencco, Inc. $1700.00 

 

Item Number________4G______ 

GM Review   _____CP_________ 

 

34

mailto:mliebmann@lgvsd.org


 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04182024\ASR for FY 24-25 Contract Award for Ferric Chloride.docx Page 2 of 3 

 
 
 
 
BACC 2023 
Bid Tabulation 
 
Bidder        Unit Price Per Dry Ton 

Kemira Water Solutions, Inc. $1498.00 

Pencco, Inc. $1700.00 

 
A copy of the Notice of Intent to Award Contract in Response to BACC Bid No. 6-2024 for Supply and 
Delivery of Ferric Chloride addressed to Kemira Water Solutions, Inc. was received from DSRSD on March 
18, 2024. DSRSD advised BACC member agencies in the Marin/Sonoma/Napa region to contact Kemira 
Water Solutions, Inc. to arrange for purchasing Ferric Chloride for the period of July 1, 2024 to June 30, 
2025.   
 
The District benefits from being a BACC member agency by leveraging the buying power of multiple 
agencies to receive the best pricing for bulk chemicals. There is also an additional benefit of reduced staff 
time that is dedicated to bid process administration. This allows staff the ability to focus on the many 
current and future projects that the District is in the process of undertaking. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
At the April 6, 2023, meeting, the board approved a contract with Kemira Water Solutions, Inc. to furnish 
liquid ferric chloride for the twelve-month period from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
NA 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
The draft FY2024/2025 budgeted amount for liquid Ferric Chloride is $48,000.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35



 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04182024\ASR for FY 24-25 Contract Award for Sodium Bisulfite.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors   

From: Mel Liebmann, Plant Manager  mliebmann@lgvsd.org 415-526-1526 

Mtg. Date: April 18, 2024 

Re: Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Sodium Bisulfite (25% Concentration) 
during the twelve-month period of July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025. 

Item Type:   Consent__ X ____ Discussion______ Information______ Other________  

Standard Contract:    Yes_X__   No_____(See attached)  Not Applicable_______ 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve Thatcher Company of California, Inc. Contract Proposal for Furnishing Liquid Sodium 
Bisulfite (25% Concentration) during the twelve-month period of July 1, 2024, to June 30, 2025. 

BACKGROUND 
As a member agency of the Bay Area Chemical Consortium (BACC), District staff received all documents 
and correspondence relating to the solicitation of bids to furnish sodium bisulfite for the twelve-month 
period of July 1, 2024, to June 30, 2025 from the BACC administrating agency, Dublin San Ramon 
Services District (DSRSD). Sodium bisulfite is used for de-chlorination of plant effluent disinfected with 
sodium hypochlorite to remain in compliance with the Wastewater Treatment Plant NPDES permit 
requirements. 
 
In 2015, BACC members voted to approve the ability for vendors to submit bids for sodium bisulfite by 
geographic region. LGVSD is a member agency located in the Marin-Sonoma-Napa region. The DSRSD 
received bids from only two vendors, Thatcher Company of California, Inc. and Univar USA Inc. The BACC 
bid review document revealed that Thatcher Company of California, Inc. was the lowest responsive bid. 
 
BACC 2024 
Bid Tabulation 
 
Bidder       Unit Price Per Gallon 

Thatcher Company of California, Inc. $1.64 

Univar USA Inc. $2.045 

 
 
BACC 2023 
Bid Tabulation 
 
 Bidder       Unit Price Per Gallon 

Univar USA Inc. $1.845 

 
 
 
 

Item Number______4H________ 

GM Review   ____CP__________ 

36

mailto:mliebmann@lgvsd.org


 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04182024\ASR for FY 24-25 Contract Award for Sodium Bisulfite.docx Page 2 of 2 

A copy of the Notice of Intent to Award Contract in Response to BACC Bid No. 11-2024 for Supply and 
Delivery of 25% Sodium Bisulfite addressed to Thatcher Company of California, Inc. was received from the 
Dublin San Ramon Services District (DSRSD) on March 18, 2024. DSRSD advised BACC member 
agencies in the Marin/Sonoma/Napa region to contact Univar USA Inc. to arrange for purchasing sodium 
bisulfite (25%) for period of July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025.   
 
The District benefits from being a BACC member agency by leveraging the buying power of multiple 
agencies to receive the best pricing for bulk chemicals. There is also an additional benefit of reduced staff 
time that is dedicated to bid process administration. This allows staff the ability to focus on the many 
current and future projects that the District is in the process of undertaking. 
 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
At the April 16, 2023 regular meeting, the Board approved a 12-month contract to Univar Solutions to 
furnish liquid sodium bisulfite (25% concentration) & liquid sodium hypochlorite (12.5% Concentration) 
beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:  
NA 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The draft FY2024/2025 budgeted amount for sodium bisulfite is $139,000.00. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

37



ORDER REGARDING PUBLICATION 

The Board of Directors finds that Ordinance 194, passed by the Board on March 21, 2024 was 

published in the Marin Independent Journal on March 7 and March 14, 2024 as required by the 

California Health and Safety Code and have been available for inspection at the District’s offices 

and on its website.  This Order constitutes conclusive evidence of compliance with requirements 

for publication and posting of this ordinance.  This Order shall be posted at the following 

locations and is available for inspection at the District’s office. 

The Order shall be posted in the following locations in the District, as follows: 

1. Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Administrative Office

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300

San Rafael, California 94903

2. Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Web Site

www.lgvsd.org

Signed this date at San Rafael, Marin County, California: 

___________________________ 

Date 

___________________________ 

Craig K. Murray, President 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

Agenda item 4I

38

http://www.lgvsd.org/


39



 

 
 

 

4/18/2024 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 5.1 

40



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04182024\Update to Policy F-90\ASR Update to Policy F-90-70 Disbursements by Resolution.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: April 18, 2024 

Re: Update Board Policy F-90 Purchasing, Revising Section F-90-70 Disbursements 

Item Type:   Consent   Action     X   Information    Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve Resolution 2024-2326 updating Board Policy F-90 Purchasing, revising Section F-90-70 
Disbursements. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Board Policy Section F-90-70 currently requires that all disbursements, whether by check or 
electronic transfer, be included on a Warrant List for Board approval at a duly noticed meeting. 
Legislative changes to the Sanitary District Act of 1939 necessitated a review of our policy. 
 
As allowed by Government Code Section 6794(b), modernizing the accounting practices allows 
the Board to adopt a procedure to allow the issuance of warrants without obtaining prior Board 
approval, so long as the demands are payable within the District’s approved budget and warrant 
list is included in the meeting materials at the next regularly scheduled board meeting. The 
District’s Bank of Marin Petty Cash Checking Account will no longer be needed as all payments by 
check will be paid from the District’s Operating bank account. 
 
A redline version of the policy showing changes to Policy F-90 is provided for convenience. No 
other sections of Board Policy F-90 were revised with the exception of administerial changes to 
the position table under section F-90-40.The Resolution and accompanying clean version of the 
policy is being presented after the redline version for adoption. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On September 1, 2022, the Board adopted Resolution 2022-2277 revising Board Policy F-90. 
 
On April 4, 2024, the Board reviewed the draft revision of section F-90-70 Disbursements and 
asked staff to remove references to claims and bring back the policy revision to the Board for 
approval.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None 

Item Number_______6_______ 

GM Review   ______________ 

41

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


Resolution No. 2024-2326  Page 1 of 5 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  2024-2326 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING REVSION TO BOARD POLICY F-90 PURCHASING 
INCORPORATING MODERNIZATION OF DISBURSEMENTS 

 
THE LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (“Board”) has determined that a comprehensive list 
of Policies and Procedures for the Board is in the best interest of the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has compiled a comprehensive list of Policies and Procedures to 
serve as the rules and regulations of the Board; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board did adopt such comprehensive list of Policies and Procedures on 
July 9, 2009; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such policies may need to be updated from time to time; and 
  
 WHEREAS, on April 4, 2024, the Board reviewed and suggested changes to Board 
Policy F-90 Purchasing, revising Section F-90-70 Disbursements; and 
 

WHEREAS, adoption of the revised policy will allow the Bank of Marin Petty Cash 
Checking Account to be closed. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
approves the following revised policy: F-90 Purchasing, incorporating revisions to F-90-70 
Disbursements. The previously approved Board Policy F-90 is hereby revoked and declared 
null and void. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the General Manager or designee is authorized to 
close the Bank of Marin Petty Cash Checking Account #03317880 and transfer funds to the 
District’s Operating Account. 
  
 If any policy or portion of a policy contained within the Policies and Procedures is in 
conflict with rules, regulations, or legislation having authority over the Las Gallinas Valley 
Sanitary District, said rules, regulations or legislation shall prevail. 
 

The Policies and Procedures shall remain in effect until amended by at least a majority 
vote of the Board of Directors. 
      

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 

I hereby certify that the forgoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District, Marin County, California, at a meeting thereof held on the 18th day of April 2024, by 
the following vote of the members thereof: 
 
 

42



Resolution No. 2024-2326  Page 2 of 5 

 
 
 
AYES, and in favor thereof Members:  
NOES, Members:   
ABSENT, Members:  
ABSTAIN, Members:       
        ________________________________ 
        Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary 
       
APPROVED:             
 
_________________________________________ 
Craig K. Murray, President of Board of Directors   

43



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual

F-90 PURCHASING,  INCLUDING RETAINING CONSULTANTS 

Purpose 

This policy establishes procedures for preparing and approving purchase orders; and preparing, 
reviewing, and approving contracts. It also covers legal requirements , petty cash, limits on 
General Manager purchases , the required "paper trail," conformance with received orders, and 
consultant arrangements. 

F-90-10 Vendors for Small Items. To purchase small items -- such as office supplies, auto 
parts, and other miscellaneous items costing less than $2,000- the General Manager will set 
policies for selecting vendors. District accounts are awarded to firms at management discretion 
that support local businesses, enable the purchase of green and/or recycled products, as well 
as provide for competitive prices, discounts, service levels, and convenience . 

F-90-15  Petty Cash.  A Petty Cash fund shall be maintained in the District office having a 
balance-on-hand maximum of $500.00.  Petty cash may be advanced to District staff upon their 
request for the purpose of procuring item(s) or service(s) appropriately relating to District 
business. After said item(s) or service(s) have been obtained, a receipt for same shall be 
submitted to the Administrative Assistant or Administrative/Financial  Specialist and any 
remaining advanced funds shall be returned.  The maximum petty cash advance shall be 
$100.00. No personal checks shall be cashed in the petty cash fund. The petty cash fund shall 
be included in the District's annual independent accounting audit. 

F-90-20 Out-of-Pocket Expenses. Whenever employees of the District incur "out-of-pocket" 
expenses for item(s) or service(s) appropriately relating to District business as verified by valid 
receipts, said expenses shall be reimbursed upon request from the District's petty cash fund or 
by check if needed.  In instances when a receipt is not obtainable, the requested reimbursement 
shall be approved by the Administrative  Services Manager prior to remuneration. 

F-90-30  Quotations. To purchase items costing more than $2,000, written quotations will be 
solicited from vendors and received by email, fax, or mail. District Staff may approve purchase 
orders up to the amount of their purchasing authority per F-90-40. For  purchases between 
$5,000 and $15,000 three quotes will be obtained, unless the item is on the District's approved 
Summary of Specified Equipment List or replacement equipment is from a manufacturer's 
authorized dealer .  In cases where the General Manager determines that certain products may 
provide a better service life, durability, meet a specific need or provide greater efficiency than 
other products he/she has the authority to order that product or engage the service without 
multiple quotes. The General Manager also has the authority to utilize specific maintenance and 
repair vendors as he/she deems appropriate or necessary. 

F-90-35 Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (UPCCAA). Public projects, as 
defined by the Act and in accordance with the limits listed in Section 22032 of the Public 
Contract Code, may be let to contract by informal procedures as set forth in Section 22032 , et 
seq. , of the Public Contract Code. Projects less than $60,000 may be performed by staff of the 
Agency, by force account with a contractor, by negotiated contract, or by use of a purchase 
order. (District Code Title 1 Chapter 7). 

Resolution  2022-22772024-2326 Date Approved: September 1, 2022April 18, 2024 

President of the Board Last Reviewed September 1, 2022April 18, 2024 

REDLINE PROPOSED CHANGES

44



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual

F-90-40 Purchasing Authority. The purchasing authority listed below shall apply except as 
authorized by separate Board action for specific construction projects. 

Position Authority 

Board of Directors No Limit 

General Manager • Construction and consultant contracts up to $60,000

• Purchase Orders up to $60,000

• Budgeted informally bid construction contracts
between $60,001 and $200,000. (Per UPCCAA)

Plant Manager Purchases up to $10,000. 

District Engineer Purchases and budgeted informally bid 
construction contracts up to $20,000. 

Collection  System / 
Maintenance / Safety Manager 

Purchases up to $10,000 . 

Administrative  Services Manager Purchases up to $10,000. 

District Executive Assistant / Board 
Secretary 

Purchases up to $5,000 

Administrative /Financial  Specialist Purchases up to $5,000 

Assistant / Associate  Engineer Purchases up to $5,000 

Environmental Services Supervisor Purchases up to $7,500 

Plant Operations and 
Maintenance Supervisors 

Purchases up to $7,500 

Skilled Maintenance Worker I/II Purchases up to $1,000
Administrative Assistant Purchases up to $1,000 

Formal construction bid contracts in excess of $60,000 must come to the Board for approval 
prior to execution. 

For purchases in excess of $15,000, staff will inform the Board of Directors regarding the 
item as soon as administratively feasible. 

F-90-50 Expense Authorization in the Absence of the General Manager. In the absence of 
the General Manager, two (2) managers may sign the purchase order for amounts in excess 
of $15 ,000.  The General Manager will approve the purchase order prior to payment. 

F-90-60  Purchase Orders. Purchases over $3,000 require a purchase order to be issued 
prior to ordering. 

F-90-70 Disbursements.  The District requires that all disbursements be properly approved 
and authorized.  To ensure that internal control is maintained over cash disbursements the 
following procedures will be performed: 

• The General Manager can authorize payment of demands without prior approval by
the Board if the District Treasurer determines the demands are payable within the 
District’s approved budget. 

Resolution  2024-2326 Date Approved: April 18, 2024 

President of the Board Last Reviewed April 18, 2024 

45



 

 

 
• Disbursements, whether by check or electronic transfer, shall be included on a 

Warrant List and presented to the Board at the next regular meeting for review. 
Invoices and related support documents will be available prior to and at the Board 
meeting for review, providing for additional Board oversightfor Board approval. 

• Demands exceeding the District’s approved budget shall be subject to Board approval 
before payment. 

 Disbursements made by check shall require two signatures for valid, documented, and 
approved expenses of the District. Signing authority is to be granted by Resolution. 
Generally, checks drawn from the Operating bank account will be signed by the General 
Manager and Administrative Services Manager, who serves as the District Treasurer. 
Where either the General Manager or Administrative Services Manager is not available, a 
Board member may sign in place of the General Manager or Administrative Services 
Manager; or two Board Members may sign in place of the General Manager and the 
Administrative Services Manager 

 
F-90-75  Intergovernmental Agreements. Agreements between two or more government 
agencies or non-governmental organizations (NGOs) regardless of purchase amount must be 
approved by the Board. 

 
F-90-80  Contract Execution. Regardless of expenditures and expense authorization levels, 
and unless otherwise authorized by the District Board, the Board (in the form of its President) 
and/or the General Manager shall remain the sole entities authorized to execute formal 
contracts on behalf of the District. Contracts shall include but not be limited to: Agreements with 
other governmental entities or NGOs; professional services agreements; construction, 
maintenance services, equipment procurement, and material supply contracts; and  
amendments thereof. 

 
F-90-90 Consultants. Consultants will be retained whenever in the judgment of the General 
Manager that there are not sufficient resources or expertise to accomplish a task. 

• Prospective consultants shall be selected from experienced, competent and reliable 
firms or individuals to provide the necessary resource. 

• For consulting expenditures below $60,000, consultants may be selected sole-source on 
the basis of their qualifications and ability . 

• For consulting procurements exceeding $60,000, a competitive process may be followed 
with emphasis on professional capability, availability to complete the task as well as 
cost. Professional Services Contracts over $60,000 shall be submitted to the Board for 
approval.  However in the case where the Board deems it more prudent and in the best 
interest of continuity of services, a consultant contract may be awarded without a 
competitive process. 

• Regular reports of consultant's progress shall be reviewed by the General Manager and 
reported to the Board. 

 
F-90-95  Vehicles. Fleet vehicles should be purchased through cooperative purchasing 
agreements or statewide contract.  The Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Fund will be used to 
fund replacement vehicles and related equipment.  The Board shall authorize the purchase of 
vehicles as part of the budget process or by separate Board action if not budgeted. 

 
 
 
 
 

Resolution  2022-22772024-2326 Date Approved : September 1, 2022April 18, 2024 

President of the Board Last Reviewed September 1, 2022April 18, 2024 

46



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual

  

 

 

F-90 PURCHASING,  INCLUDING RETAINING CONSULTANTS 
 

Purpose 

This policy establishes procedures for preparing and approving purchase orders; and preparing, 
reviewing, and approving contracts. It also covers legal requirements , petty cash, limits on 
General Manager purchases , the required "paper trail," conformance with received orders, and 
consultant arrangements. 

 
F-90-10 Vendors for Small Items. To purchase small items -- such as office supplies, auto 
parts, and other miscellaneous items costing less than $2,000- the General Manager will set 
policies for selecting vendors. District accounts are awarded to firms at management discretion 
that support local businesses, enable the purchase of green and/or recycled products, as well 
as provide for competitive prices, discounts, service levels, and convenience . 

 
F-90-15  Petty Cash.  A Petty Cash fund shall be maintained in the District office having a 
balance-on-hand maximum of $500.00.  Petty cash may be advanced to District staff upon their 
request for the purpose of procuring item(s) or service(s) appropriately relating to District 
business. After said item(s) or service(s) have been obtained, a receipt for same shall be 
submitted to the Administrative Assistant or Administrative/Financial  Specialist and any 
remaining advanced funds shall be returned.  The maximum petty cash advance shall be 
$100.00. No personal checks shall be cashed in the petty cash fund. The petty cash fund shall 
be included in the District's annual independent accounting audit. 

 
F-90-20 Out-of-Pocket Expenses. Whenever employees of the District incur "out-of-pocket" 
expenses for item(s) or service(s) appropriately relating to District business as verified by valid 
receipts, said expenses shall be reimbursed upon request from the District's petty cash fund or 
by check if needed.  In instances when a receipt is not obtainable, the requested reimbursement 
shall be approved by the Administrative  Services Manager prior to remuneration. 

 
F-90-30  Quotations. To purchase items costing more than $2,000, written quotations will be 
solicited from vendors and received by email, fax, or mail. District Staff may approve purchase 
orders up to the amount of their purchasing authority per F-90-40. For  purchases between 
$5,000 and $15,000 three quotes will be obtained, unless the item is on the District's approved 
Summary of Specified Equipment List or replacement equipment is from a manufacturer's 
authorized dealer .  In cases where the General Manager determines that certain products may 
provide a better service life, durability, meet a specific need or provide greater efficiency than 
other products he/she has the authority to order that product or engage the service without 
multiple quotes. The General Manager also has the authority to utilize specific maintenance and 
repair vendors as he/she deems appropriate or necessary. 

 
F-90-35 Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (UPCCAA). Public projects, as 
defined by the Act and in accordance with the limits listed in Section 22032 of the Public 
Contract Code, may be let to contract by informal procedures as set forth in Section 22032 , et 
seq. , of the Public Contract Code. Projects less than $60,000 may be performed by staff of the 
Agency, by force account with a contractor, by negotiated contract, or by use of a purchase 
order. (District Code Title 1 Chapter 7). 

 
 

 
Resolution  2024-2326 Date Approved: April 18, 2024 

President of the Board Last Reviewed April 18, 2024 

47



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual

  

 

 

F-90-40 Purchasing Authority. The purchasing authority listed below shall apply except as 
authorized by separate Board action for specific construction projects. 

 
 

Position Authority 

Board of Directors No Limit 

General Manager • Construction and consultant contracts up to $60,000 

• Purchase Orders up to $60,000 

• Budgeted informally bid construction contracts 
between $60,001 and $200,000. (Per UPCCAA) 

Plant Manager Purchases up to $10,000. 

District Engineer Purchases and budgeted informally bid 
construction contracts up to $20,000. 

Collection System / Maintenance 
/ Safety Manager 

Purchases up to $10,000 . 

Administrative  Services Manager Purchases up to $10,000. 

Executive Assistant / Board 
Secretary 

Purchases up to $5,000 

Administrative Financial Specialist Purchases up to $5,000 

Assistant / Associate Engineer Purchases up to $5,000 

Environmental Services Supervisor Purchases up to $7,500 

Plant Operations and 
Maintenance Supervisors 

Purchases up to $7,500 

Skilled Maintenance Worker I/II Purchases up to $1,000
Administrative Assistant Purchases up to $1,000 

 
Formal construction bid contracts in excess of $60,000 must come to the Board for approval 
prior to execution. 

 
For purchases in excess of $15,000, staff will inform the Board of Directors regarding the 
item as soon as administratively feasible. 

 
F-90-50 Expense Authorization in the Absence of the General Manager. In the absence of 
the General Manager, two (2) managers may sign the purchase order for amounts in excess 
of $15 ,000.  The General Manager will approve the purchase order prior to payment. 

 
F-90-60  Purchase Orders. Purchases over $3,000 require a purchase order to be issued 
prior to ordering. 

 
F-90-70 Disbursements.  The District requires that all disbursements be properly approved 
and authorized.  To ensure that internal control is maintained over cash disbursements the 
following procedures will be performed: 

• The General Manager can authorize payment of demands without prior approval by 
the Board if the District Treasurer determines the demands are payable within the 
District’s approved budget. 

 
 

Resolution  2024-2326 Date Approved: April 18, 2024 

President of the Board Last Reviewed April 18, 2024 

 48



 

 

 
• Disbursements, whether by check or electronic transfer, shall be included on a 

Warrant List and presented to the Board at the next regular meeting for review. 
Invoices and related support documents will be available prior to and at the Board 
meeting for review, providing for additional Board oversight. 

• Demands exceeding the District’s approved budget shall be subject to Board approval 
before payment. 

 Disbursements made by check shall require two signatures for valid, documented, and 
approved expenses of the District. Signing authority is to be granted by Resolution. 
Generally, checks drawn from the Operating bank account will be signed by the General 
Manager and Administrative Services Manager, who serves as the District Treasurer. 
Where either the General Manager or Administrative Services Manager is not available, a 
Board member may sign in place of the General Manager or Administrative Services 
Manager; or two Board Members may sign in place of the General Manager and the 
Administrative Services Manager 

 
F-90-75  Intergovernmental Agreements. Agreements between two or more government 
agencies or non-governmental organizations (NGOs) regardless of purchase amount must be 
approved by the Board. 

 
F-90-80  Contract Execution. Regardless of expenditures and expense authorization levels, 
and unless otherwise authorized by the District Board, the Board (in the form of its President) 
and/or the General Manager shall remain the sole entities authorized to execute formal 
contracts on behalf of the District. Contracts shall include but not be limited to: Agreements with 
other governmental entities or NGOs; professional services agreements; construction, 
maintenance services, equipment procurement, and material supply contracts; and  
amendments thereof. 

 
F-90-90 Consultants. Consultants will be retained whenever in the judgment of the General 
Manager that there are not sufficient resources or expertise to accomplish a task. 

• Prospective consultants shall be selected from experienced, competent and reliable 
firms or individuals to provide the necessary resource. 

• For consulting expenditures below $60,000, consultants may be selected sole-source on 
the basis of their qualifications and ability . 

• For consulting procurements exceeding $60,000, a competitive process may be followed 
with emphasis on professional capability, availability to complete the task as well as 
cost. Professional Services Contracts over $60,000 shall be submitted to the Board for 
approval.  However in the case where the Board deems it more prudent and in the best 
interest of continuity of services, a consultant contract may be awarded without a 
competitive process. 

• Regular reports of consultant's progress shall be reviewed by the General Manager and 
reported to the Board. 

 
F-90-95  Vehicles. Fleet vehicles should be purchased through cooperative purchasing 
agreements or statewide contract.  The Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Fund will be used to 
fund replacement vehicles and related equipment.  The Board shall authorize the purchase of 
vehicles as part of the budget process or by separate Board action if not budgeted. 

 
 
 
 

Resolution  2024-2326 Date Approved : April 18, 2024 

President of the Board Last Reviewed April 18, 2024 

49



 

 
 

 

4/18/2024 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, CASA Workforce Committee, 
Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet 
Management Ad Hoc Committee, FutureSense Ad Hoc 
Committee, Other Reports 
 

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, Flood Zone 6,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, 
CASA Energy Committee, Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
SF Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  
  

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, Engineering Ad 
Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc 
Committee, Development Ad Hoc Committee, FutureSense 
Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-
Committee re: STPURWE, Marin Special Districts 
Association, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7 

50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



                                                                                  AGENDA ITEM 8A 
                                                                                 DATE: April 18, 2024             

REVISED 06012021 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

                  YES     NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference:          

 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

68



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04182024\Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

4/18/2024 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 8B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100


	Agenda 04182024
	1 Public Comment
	2 Appointment to Fill Board Vacancy
	3 Closed Session
	4A Minutes 04042024
	4B Warrant List 04182024
	4C Board Compensation for March
	4D Murray Webinar request
	4E Murray NBWA Conference request
	4F Contract Award for Sodium Hypochlorite
	4G Contract Award for Ferric Chloride
	4H Contract Award for Sodium Bisulfite
	4I CERTIFICATE OF POSTING - Ordinance 194
	5.1 General Manager Report
	6 Update to Policy F-90-70 Disbursements by Resolution
	7 Board Member Reports
	7.2 Murray Report Notes
	8A Board Member Meeting Attendance Request
	8B Board Agenda Item Requests
	9 Various Industry Articles



